

Minutes of the Coalition Meeting of March 23, 2018

Meeting location: Nevada Dental Association

8863 West Flamingo Road, Suite 102 Las Vegas, Nevada 89147-8725

Vision: Optimal oral health for all Clark County residents.

Mission: To achieve optimal oral health for all residents of Clark County by

advocating for increased prevention, access and awareness

1. Call to Order: 9:35 AM

Coalition Chair Cathie Davenport called the meeting to order and read the *Vision* and *Mission* statements.

2. Participating Organizations and Reports

Member Organizations & Representatives	Present	Not
		Present
Clark County School District: Irma Pumphrey School Nurse		X
College of Southern Nevada:		X
		37
Dental Care International:		X
Future Smiles: Jan Taylor CCOH Treasurer, Future Smiles Case	X	
Manager		
State Dental Health Officer: Dr. Antonia Capurro		
State Public Hygienist: Judy White (by phone)	X	
Nevada Dental Association: Dr. Bob Talley		X
Nevada Dental Benefits: Cathie Davenport CCOH Chair, AC4OH	X	
Chair, Oral Health Nevada Board member and VP Client Relations		
Nevada Dental Benefits		
NV Dental Hygienists' Association:		X
NV Health Centers:		X
NV State Board of Dental Examiners:		X
Nevada Oral Health Program: Jack Zenteno State of Nevada		X

Children's Services (phone)		
So. Nevada Dental Hygienists' Association:		X
Oral Health Nevada: Chris Garvey, AC4OH Committee, CCSD		X
Trustee and AHEC Board member		7.
Access Health Dental: Kristen Simmons Mobile Health Sales and		X
Marketing		
Liberty Dental: Laurie Curfman Client Operations Manager	X	
Eduardo Medicaid Community Service	X	
Liberty Dental: Anna Macias Director of Account Management		X
By Phone		
UNLV: Dr. Judy Skelton and AC4OH Committee		X

Judy White asked if she could give the State of Nevada report first. She is traveling with the new Oral Health Manager Danielle Cubit introducing her to contacts in the Northern Nevada area. Judy stated that the HERSA grant was submitted. Judy has been orchestrating pieces and parts for the SOHL- Oral Health Leadership on Feb 18-19. She visited the Las Vegas video conference center. Judy attended with Julie Peak. Dr. Capurro orchestrated the meeting with Southern Nevada Health District to collaborate to have a hygienist on their medical bus. Dr. Isner and Dr. Capurro are going to travel to Tonopah and Goldfield. The communities are busing in people from nearby areas. Judy might travel down to meet them and help them.

Participating Organizations

Future Smiles

Jan Taylor stated that they worked on a project with Catholic Charities that was very successful. On April 11 the Family Health Centers along with A-1 Dental, White Castle are participating in a job fair. You can register to get a booth inside, and each participant is going to be in a certain area. They are hoping to get the Ronald McDonald bus. There will be specific rooms for medical and vision. The event is from 2-7pm. There will be pick up locations. On 4-6 there will; be flyers passed out in the event.

Jan presented the historical timeline for Future Smiles from creation in 2007 to 2017. In 2009-10 the program served one school/ They saw 786 students, placed 1631 sealants, they did 198 cleanings and did fluoride treatment on 779 teeth. In 2010-2011 the school number increase to five. Students seen were 1749, sealants placed were 4581, they did 751 cleanings and did fluoride on 1745 teeth. In 2011- 2013 twelve schools were being served by the program. The number of students increased to 2969, sealants placed were 3729, they did 885 cleanings and placed fluoride on 2153 teeth. In 2012-13 the program grew to 19 schools. They served 2545 students, did 3199 sealants, they did 942 cleanings and placed fluoride on 1940 teeth. In 2013-14 they continued the growth to 21 schools.

They served 3061 students, placed 4278 sealants, they did 871 cleanings and placed fluoride on 1773 teeth. In 2014-15 the grew to 22 schools. In this time frame they saw 3344 students, placed 9051 sealants, they did 1694 cleanings and fluoride on 3041 teeth. In 2015-16 they grew to 25 schools in the program. They saw 6416 students, placed 9310 sealants, they did 1754 cleanings and placed fluoride on 3361 teeth. In 2016-17 they grew again to 40 schools in the program. They saw 16,021 students, placed 11,364 sealants, they did 1720 cleanings and placed fluoride on 4419 teeth.

Future Smiles would like to use

Treasurers Report OLD REPORT

Jan Taylor gave the Treasurer Report.

Fiscal Year 7/1/2-17 we have 13 paid members which brought in a revenue of \$325.00. There is one-member payment pending. We have a refund from the email list of \$300.00. The total in the bank is \$8077.21. Jan has set up the goggle email and the address is CCOH2018list.

Liberty Dental

Laurie said she spent the first week in Carson City at a command center. Things went very well. There was a designated phone number the Medicaid members could call. The number is 1-866-609-0418 and Liberty is open Mon-Friday from 8am to 5pm. Id cards went out at the end of the month of December. Liberty is using the Medicaid ID number and they also have home assignments. Identification cards went out at the end of December to Medicaid members. There was a question about hoe the dental home will work with Future Smiles programs. Jan Taylor has a portal to check if Medicaid members are eligible. There was a concern by Chris Garvey about duplicate procedures, but the portal gives the office that information. Laurie explained that there is website that the members can access for providers. Liberty has also had people walk in their office and they are assisting them to find providers. Liberty is going to check into having training for community partners with the webinar. Chris suggested that they train the CCSD nurses to have them direct students and their parents. Chris had some concerns about dental codes that are not covered under Medicaid.

1-25 Miles contracted providers Liberty is 100% adequacy

1,262 contracted providers for adult access

1,311 general dentists for children

240 Pediatric Dentists

60 Endodontists

160 Oral Surgeons

40 Periodontists

These offices are in Washoe and Clark County which are the only counties that Liberty is contracted to serve. The rest of Nevada is on the Fee for Service plan.

Fee for Service Medicaid

There have been a lot of issues with the FFS plan in the past. They have included claims not paid and Pre-authorizations not completed in a timely manner. Chris Garvey and Cathie Davenport asked if CCOH could have a representative from the FFA come to the next meeting for an update. Jack Zenteno is going to ask if we can have someone from HPN Enterprise attend the next meeting. Chris Garvey would like them to collaborate with the nurses in the community. Cathie explained that some of the challenges may be that there are no dental practices in some of the outline areas to serve the population. Dr. Capurro and Jack said that HPN Enterprise does have a consultant.

Cathie Davenport reminded the group that the Oral Health Legislative Day is coming up and CCOH, CUSP and Oral Health Nevada has agreed to participate. This takes time to plan and we will be keeping this project in mind. There was no position's like Dr. Capurro and Judy White hold in Nevada for 13-14 years. It was law to have the positions but that was not in the budget per Chris Garvey.

Cathie thanked everyone for their hard work in the rural areas. The collaboration and communication from everyone at the meeting today.

A motion was made to adjourn the meeting by Chris Garvey Seconded by Jan Taylor. Motion passed.